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This house is a one and a half story gam brel'-roofed fram e building 
with a sm all central colum nar front entrance (possibly added later than 
the building of the original house; they are typical of the early 19th 
century), having a gabled portion supported by two square fluted colum ns 
with fluted capitals; and joined to the house by two Corinthian pilasters. 
This portico has a closed pedim ent and dentil course with half-round 
m oulding. The exterior is done in clapboard with the corner boards 
beaded, and the windows double-hung, six panes over six. The original 
portion of the house is the gam breled m ain section, built circa 1780. 
Viewed from  the gables, there are two windows at the half-story.
Above the half-story is a sm all four-paned window in the attic. The 
cornice has a narrow rake, the eves projecting one foot with a 
dentil course.

Viewed from  the front, this section has two equal-sized, centrally 
placed windows on either side of the portion. Also at the front of 
the house are three dorm er windows on the lower slant of the roof, 
added by the Ives fam ily when the house was first m oved in 1924 to 
Chapel Place. Over each of these windows there are sm all sem icircular 
fanlights. A sim ilar sem ielliptical fanlight is over the front door.
In line with the door is the large rectangular central chim ney. The 
present visible chim neys are replacem ents and will be restored as they 
appeared in the 18th century.

To the' rear and left‘of the house, a wing had been added in the 
19th century, m aking the L shaped building thaf exists today, and_ 
that existed'during m ost of the occupancy of the Ives fam ily. This 
portion of the house has a straight-pitched roof, the left side (or 
south side) being’longer than the right. The left side of this roof 
has a double-windowed dorm er without a fanlight, and there are five 
double-hung windows across the width of the half-story. At the first 
floor is a sm all porch (probably a Victorian addition) attached straddling 
the original portion of the house. This open porch is supported by 
two square fluted colum ns sim ilar to the ones under the portico.
The rear wing also has a central chim ney, but half the size of the 
one at the front of the house. At the gable end of this wind is a 
door placed off center on the first floor, and two windows also off 
center at the half-story. Above these is another sm all four-paned 
window in the attic.
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In the elbow of the two wings is a sm all rectangular addition 
roofed at the first floor ceiling line. This contains three equal 
sized windows on the north side, and a door on the west side. Over 
this has been added a large dorm er attached to the rear wing, with a 
flat slanted roof.

The exterior of the house is in its original condition (the 
condition at the tim e of occupancy by the Ives fam ily) as shown in 
period photographs. The architectural alteration consists of three 
dorm er windows added by the Ives fam ily to the gam brel roof of the 
front section. Alterations by the Scott-Fanton M useum  consist of 
the enlargem ent of a large dorm er to the rear wing of the house to 
com plete a caretaker's apartm ent on the second floor.

The house was m oved from  its original site on M ain Street in 
Danbury by the Ives fam ily in 1924, to property on Chapel Place, 
just behind the M ain Street site. It was m oved again in 1967 to 
the present site of the Rogers Park Junior High School, and again to 
its present site on property adjoining Rogers Park in 1,971. The 
building was m oved originally to m ake way for the Danbury National 
Bank. The second tim e it was m oved because the Fairfield County 
Trust Co. needed room  to expand, at which tim e the house was 
given to the Danbury Scott-Fanton M useum . M useum  property at 43 
M ain Street was not sufficient to accom m odate the Ives Hom estead.
It was necessary to purchase fourteen acres in Rogers Park to provide 
an im m ediate site for the house.

The present site of the Ives house adjoins a city park (Rogers 
Park) on property bought by the M useum  for this purpose in 1967.
Soon after, the city needed the 14-acre site on which the house stood 
to build the Rogers Park Junior High. The city bought the property 
from  the M useum  and leased seven of those acres to the M useum  as a 
99 year lease with a renewal option. It is on these seven acres 
that the Ives house now stands, bordered by the Junior High property 
and M ountainvilie Avenue.

The interior, of the house has been greatly altered; little or 
no original fabric is apparent. Interior woodwork̂  consists of 
plain Victorian m oldings, m antels and doors. The floor is com posed 
of uniform  width tongue and groove boards. The interior walls 
appear to be plaster over m achine sawed lathe.
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Although the Ives Hom estead achieves its principle significance 
as the birthplace of Charles Edward Ives (1874-1954) recognized 
as Am erica's m ost original and outstanding com poser̂ the creator 
of m odern Am erican m usic, there are few houses now standing in 
Danbury that have been m ore closely associated with the history and 
growth of the city.

The house was built soon after the Revolutionary W ar by Thom as 
Tucker who purchased the land in 1780. He erected the original house 
(gam breled section) and conducted a private school there. The house 
cam e into the possession of Isaac Ives (born Jan. 13, 1764) in 1828 
and rem ained in the possession of the Ives fam ily until 1962. Isaac's 
son, George W hite Ives, was very active in the early growth and 
developm ent of Danbury and was forem ost in m any com m unity enterprises. 
He was one of the original incorporators and first treasurer of the 
Danbury & Norwalk Railroad; one of the organizers of the Danbury 
Gas Com pany; laid out the W ooster Cem etery (1851); and founded the 
Savings Bank of Danbury in the parlor of the Ives hom e (1049).

All of these enterprises in which George W hite Ives had a hand" 
were generated during inform al gatherings at the Ives hom estead.
The "north parlor" served as a convenient m eeting place located as 
it was in the center of town. Later on, during the occupancy of 
Lym an Brewster who had m arried an Ives, this sam e parlor served 
as the study in which m uch of the work involved in drafting one of 
the landm ark acts in the field of Am erican jurisprudence-the 
Negotiable Instrum ents Act, carried out by Judge Brewster as Chairm an 
of the Com ission on Uniform  Laws of the Am erican Bar Association, 
together with W oodrow W ilson, a fellow m em ber of the Com m ission.
They m et on several occasions at 210 M ain St. to work out the details 
of drafting the proposed law.

There were five children born to George W . and his wife Sarah, 
one of which died in childhood. Joseph M oss Ives was active too in 
com m unity enterprises and served on the Board of Directors of the 
Danbury Agricultural Fair. M rs. Joseph Ives (Sarah Cooley M erritt) 
served as Director of the Danbury Hospital founded in 1890. Another
son, Coerge Edward, was born ±n 1845 and served as cashier and Director
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of the Savings Bank and at the request of Col. Nelson L. W hite founded 
the Connecticut Volunteer Bank and served in the Civil W ar with the 
First Connecticut Heavy Artillery.

Charles Edward Ives was born on October 20, 1874 in the Ives 
hom estead. W ith his father, a m usic teacher, and his m other, a 
Church soloist, Charles grew up in an atm osphere saturated with 
m arches. Church hym ns, sentim ental m eolidies, and barn-dance fiddling. 
M any an evening in the fam ily parlor was devoted to the m usic of 
Bach, Handel, and Beethoven.

Charles Ives m oved out of his birthplace to a house on Stevens 
Street with his parents and brother when his Aunt Am elia cam e hom e 
with her husband Lym an Brewster to take care of Charles''aged grandm other 
M rs. George W . Ives. Am elia insisted that her brothers get out of 
the house, but according to fam ily m em bers, there was never a day 
that the fam ily did not gather at the old hom estead. Charles and 
his brother continued to spend m ost of their tim e in the backyard 
playing grocery store in a sm all building directly behind the old house.

Aftera few years on Stevens St. in 1879 the George E. Ives 
fam ily m oved to 10 Chapel Place behind the M ain Street house.
According to Bigelow Ives, the fam ily from  then on were in the M ain 
St. house m ore than at hom e and the Chapel Place house was considered 
an annex to the hom estead since it was on adjoining property.

In 1894 Ives entered Yale. There he studied m usic under Horatio 
Parker. Ives becam e an accom plished organist and com posed m usic as 
a career. He continued to write until 1930 when, because of a heart 
condition, he retired to his hom e in W est Redding, Connecticut.

Ives' m usic includes four sym phonies, six sonatas, orchestral 
works, and nearly two hundred songs. Public recognition cam e late.
Few of his works were perform ed in his lifetim e, but he did receive 
great satisfaction from  a perform ance of the Second Sym phony by 
Leonard Bernstein in 1951.

His rugged dissonances, his quartertones and conflicting rythm s 
were a new m us|.c for Am erica. "Colum bia, the Gem of the Ocean," 
heard in the Second Sym phony, becom es a m asterpiece with a firecracker 
4th of July explosiveness. On one of his scores, Ives write a note for 
the copier: "Don't fix anything. Every wrong note is right!"

Charles was awarded the Pulitzer Prize for the m ost distinguished 
m usical com position perform ed in 1946. He died at his W est Redding hom e 
in 1954,
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Charles went to New Haven in 1893 first to prep school and then 
to Yale and did not really return to Danbury to live thereafter. 
However, when he did return, it was always to the Hom estead. His 
m other returned to live in the house after Am elia died. Her sister 
lived there with her until M rs. Ives died in 1929. It was during this 
period that the house was first m oved. Charles and J. M oss, his 
brother decided to m ove the house because it was being com pletely 
surrounded by business and had lost its "aura" that had inspired 
Ives m usic. The two elderly ladies objected and in fact stayed 
right in the house when it was m oved a few rods up the hill off the 
business street.

After Charles Ives' death and the death of his sisbsr-in-law, 
who was the last fam ily occupant of the house, the fam ily sold the 
property to the Fairfield County Bank which wanted to expand its 
parking lot. It was entirely surrounded by business and the bank 
arranged for it to be taken over by the Historical Society which 
m oved it to a site adjoining a city park hoping to recapture the 
essence about the house that Charles had loved and rem em bered in 
his m usical com position.

The house had great m eaning to Danburians because of its 
significance in town history. The people who occupied it including 
Charles, were im portant to the growth of the com m unity; it represents 
the past to Danbury as no other house does. Townspeople regretted 
the necessity of m oving the house, but are not disturbed on that 
account since they know that the building wouldn't be in existence 
otherwise. They do not connect the Ives fam ily of Charles with any 
other house in town.

As far as houses Ives was associated with during his lifetim e, 
the Redding House was a dearly loved residence of M r. and M rs.
Ives, but they did not live in it during his productive years, nor 
did it provide any inspiration or background m aterial for his m usic.

The two houses in Hartsdale, New York where he lived during his 
m ost productive years are no longer in existence.

He lived in eight places in New York City, but they are m ore 
associated with Ives' business career than with his m usic. He wrote 
m uch of his m usic on the com m uter trains, which were m ore im portant 
than his hom e to his life as a m usician.
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Charles Ives Rem em bered; An Oral History, by Vivian Perlis, 1974 

Charles E. Ives M em os, edited by John Kirkpatrick, 1972.

Charles Ives and His M usic, by Henry & Sidney Cowell, 1955.
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